

## **WSV Bibliographic References: Victim Services**

Accident Compensation Corporation, National Office, Wellington, New Zealand.  
<http://www.acc.co.nz/>

Albercht, P. A., and Backes, O. (1989). *Informal Justice: Mediation Between Offenders and Victims. Crime Prevention and Intervention: Legal and Ethical Problems*. Berlin: Walter de Gruyter.

Alberta Solicitor General Victim Programs, Alberta, Canada.  
[http://www.solgps.alberta.ca/programs\\_and\\_services/victim\\_services/victims\\_of\\_crime\\_service\\_agencies/Pages/default.aspx](http://www.solgps.alberta.ca/programs_and_services/victim_services/victims_of_crime_service_agencies/Pages/default.aspx)

Ammerman, R. T., and Hersen, M. (1990). *Treatment of Family Violence: A Sourcebook*. New York: Wiley.

Anderson, J. R., and Woodard, P. L. (1985). Victim and Witness Assistance: New State Laws and the System's Response. *Judicature*, 68, 221-244.

Andrews, A. B. (1992). *Victimization and Survivor Services: A Guide to Victim Assistance*. New York: Springer.

Associação Portuguesa de Apoio a Vítima (APAV) (Portuguese Association for Victim Support), Lisboa, Portugal. <http://www.apav.pt/>

Attorney General's Office, Compensation Program: Northern Territory, Australia.  
<http://www.justice.nt.gov.au/>

Bard, M., and D. Sangrey. 1986. *The Crime Victim's Book 2<sup>nd</sup> ed*. New York: Brunner/Mazel. Austern, David (1987). *The Crime Victims Handbook: Your Rights and Role in the Criminal Justice System*. New York: Viking.

Belknap, Joanne (2001). *The Invisible Woman: Gender, Crime, and Justice*. Toronto: Wadsworth Thomson Learning.

Belknap, Joanne (1995). Law Enforcement Officers' Attitudes about the Appropriate Responses to Woman Battering. *International Review of Victimology*, 4, 47-62.

Bernat, F. P., Parsonage, W. H., and Helfgott, J. (1994). Victim Impact Laws and the Parole Process in the United States: Balancing Victim and Inmate Rights and Interests. *International Review of Victimology*, 3, 121-140.

Brottsoffermyndigheten (the Crime Victim Compensation and Support Authority), Umea, Sweden. <http://www.brottsoffermyndigheten.se/>

Burgess, A. W., and Holmstrom, L. L. (1979). *Rape, crisis, and recovery*. Bowie, MD: Brady.

Buzawa, E. S., and Buzawa, C. G. (1990). *Domestic Violence: The criminal justice response*. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.

Cardenas, T. C. (1986). The Crime Victim in the Prosecutorial Process. *Harvard Journal of Law and Public Policy*, 9, 357-398.

Chappel, D. (1988). The Implementation of Victims' Rights in North America. In M. C. Bassiouni, *Nouvelles Etudes Penales: International Protection of Victims*. Toulouse, France: Eres, p 377-384.

Chelimsky, E. (1981). Serving Victims: Agency Incentives and Individual Needs. In S. E. Salsain, *Evaluating Victim Services*, p 73-97. Beverly Hills, CA: Sage.

Chon, Y. (1974). Crisis Intervention and the Victim of Robbery. *Victimology: A New Focus*, Vol. 2, 11-16. Lexington, MA: Lexington Books.

Commissie Schadefonds Geweldsmisdrijven (Criminal Injuries Compensation Fund, The Netherlands. <http://www.schadefonds.nl/>

Compensation Board (Botanefnd), Ministry of Judicial and Ecclesiastical Affairs, Iceland. <http://www.domsmalaraduneyti.is/>

Compensation Department, Czech Ministry of Justice, Czech Republic. <http://www.justice.cz/>

*Crime Victims - Victim Rights, Women Victims, The Right To Sue And Bear Witness, Victim Compensation Laws*. <http://law.jrank.org/pages/12016/Crime-Victims.html>

Criminal Injuries Compensation Board (The Compensation Board), Denmark. <http://www.erstatningsnaevnet.dk/>

Criminal and Law Enforcement Injuries Compensation Section, Welfare Department, Wanchai, Hong Kong. [http://www.swd.gov.hk/en/index/site\\_pubsvc/page\\_socsecu/sub\\_criminalan/](http://www.swd.gov.hk/en/index/site_pubsvc/page_socsecu/sub_criminalan/)

Davis, Robert C., Kunreuther, F., and Connick, E. (1984). Expanding the Victim's Role in the Criminal Court Dispositional Process: The results of an experiment. *Journal of Criminal Law and Criminology*, 75, 491-505.

Davis, Robert C., and Smith, Barbara E. (1994). Victim Impact Statements and Victim Satisfaction: An Unfulfilled Promise? *Journal of Criminal Justice*, 22, 1-12.

Davis, Robert C., Taylor, B. G., and Titus, R. M. (1997). Victims as agents: Implications for victim services and crime prevention. In R. C. Davis, A. J. Lurigio, and W. G. Skogan (Eds.), *Victims of Crime 2<sup>nd</sup> ed.*, Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage. P. 167-179.

Department of Justice, Manila, Philippines. <http://www.doj.gov.ph/>

Department of Rehabilitation and Social Protection, Ministry of Justice, Taipei, Taiwan. <http://www.moj.gov.tw/>

Directory of Crime Victim Services: an OVC Online Resource. *The Role of ADR Processes in the Criminal Justice System: A view from Australia*  
<http://ovc.ncjrs.gov/findvictimservices/results2.asp>

Dittenhoffer, T., and Ericson, R. (1983). The Victim Offender Reconciliation Program: A Message to Correctional Reformers. *University of Toronto Law Journal*, 33(3), 315-347.

Doerner, W. G., Knudten, M. S., Knudten, R. D., and Meade, A. C. (1976). Correspondence Between Crime Victim Needs and Available Public Services. *Social Services Review*, 50, 482-490.

Elias, Robert (1983). *Victims of the System: Crime Victims and Compensation in American Politics and Criminal Justice*. New Brunswick, NJ: Transaction Books.

Elias, Robert (1986). Community Control, Criminal Justice and Victim Services. In E. A. Fattah, *From Crime Policy to Victim Policy: Reorienting the Justice System*, p 290-316. New York: St. Martin's.

England and Wales Support National Office, London, England.  
<http://www.victimsupport.org.uk/>

*Enough is Enough* at <http://www.enoughisenough.org.au/victims/>  
*Victim of Crime Assistance League Inc NSW* at <http://www.vocal.org.au/>

Erez, E. (1994). Victim Participation in Sentencing: And the debate goes on...  
*International Review of Victimology*, 3, 17-32.

*Evaluation Report: Grande Prairie Reconciliation Project for Young Offenders*. (1984). Ottawa, Canada: Consultation Centre (Prairies), Ministry of the Solicitor General of Canada.

Fattah, Ezzat A. (1997). Toward a Victim Policy aimed at Healing, not Suffering. In Robert C. Davis, Aurthor J. Lurigio, and W. G. Skogan, *Victims of Crime 2<sup>nd</sup> ed.*, p257-272. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.

Fein, E., and Knaut, S. A. (1986). Crisis Intervention and Support: Working with the Police. *Social Casework: The Journal of Contemporary Social Work*, 67, 276-282.

Finn, P. (1986). Collaboration between the Judiciary and Victim-Witness Assistance Programs. *Judicature*, 69, 192-198.

Fonds de Garantie, Commissions d'Indemnisation des Victimes (CIVI), France.  
<http://www.fgti.fr/francais/adresses/adresses-civi.htm>

Friedman, L. N., and Shulman, M. (1990). Domestic Violence: The Criminal Justice Response. In A. J. Lurigio, W. G. Skogan, and Robert C. Davis, *Victims of Crime: Problems, policies, and programs*. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.

Gittler, J. (1984). Expanding the Role of the Victim in a Criminal Action: An overview of issues and problems. *Pepperdine Law Review*, 11, 117-182.

Goldstein, A. S. (1982). Defining the Role of the Victim in Criminal Prosecution. *Mississippi Law Journal*, 52, 515-561.

Gordon, Margaret, and Stephanie Riger (1989). *The Female Fear*. New York: Free Press.

Great Britain Criminal Injuries Compensation Authority (CICA), Glasgow.  
<http://www.cica.gov.uk/>

Groenhuijsen, Marc, and Letschert Rianne. (2006). *Complications on International Victims' Rights Instruments*. Tillburg, The Netherlands. Intervict and Wolf Legal Publishers.

Hillenbrand, S. W., and Smith, Barbara E. (1989). *Victims Rights Legislation: An assessment of its impact on criminal justice practitioners and victims*. Chicago, IL: American Bar Association.\

Hudson, J., and Galaway, B. *Considering the Victim: Readings in restitution and victim compensation*. Springfield, IL: Charles C Thomas.

Institut National d'Aide aux Victimes Et de Mediation (INAVEM), Paris, France.  
<http://www.inavem.org/>

Jerin, Robert A., and Laura J. Moriarty (1998). *Victims of Crime*. Chicago, IL: Nelson-Hall Publishers.

Jerin, Robert A., Moriarty, Laura J., and Gibson, M. A. (1995). Victim Services or Self Services? An Analysis of Prosecution based Victim-Witness Assistance Programs and Providers. *Criminal Justice Policy Review*, 7, 142-154.

Johnson, K. W., Tamberrino, R. A., Marshall, A. A., and Moyer, A. A. (1978). Consumer Protection: Responsiveness of control agents to victims of fraud. *Victimology*, 3, 63-76.

Karmen, Andrew (2001). *Crime Victims: An Introduction to Victimology 4th ed.* Belmont, CA: Wadsworth.

Karmen, Andrew (1980). Victim Facilitation: The case of automobile theft. *Victimology*, 4, 361-370.

Kelly, Deborah P. (1984). Delivery Legal Services to Victims: An Evaluation and Prescription. *Justice System Journal*, 9, 62-86.

Kennedy, L. W., and Silverman, R. A. (1990). The Elderly Victim of Homicide: An application of the routine activities approach. *Sociological Quarterly*, 31, 307-319.

Kilpatrick, D. G. (1985). *Research on Long-Term Effects of Criminal Victimization: Scientific, Service Delivery, and Public Policy Perspectives.* Washington DC: National Institute of Mental Health with the Cooperation of the National Organization for Victim Assistance.

Kilpatrick, D. G., and Otto, R. K. (1987). Constitutionally Guaranteed Participation in Criminal Justice Proceedings for Victims: Potential Effects on Psychological Functioning. *Wayne Law Review*, 34, 7-28.

Knudsen, D. D., and Miller, J. L. (1991). *Abused and Battered: Social and legal responses to family violence.* New York: Aldine de Gruyter.

Kontoret for Voldsoffererstatning (Claims Office for Victims of Violent Crime, Vardoe, Norway. <http://www.voldsoffererstatning.no/>

Lehman, D. R., Ellard, J. H., and Wortman, C. B. (1986). Social support for the bereaved: recipients' and providers' perspectives on what is helpful. *Journal of Consulting and Clinical Psychology*, 54, 438-446.

Lewis, Melissa and Les McCrimmon. At ALRAESA Conference At Imperial, 4-8 September, 2005. Pages 1-13.  
[http://www.doj.gov.za/alraesa/conferences/papers/ent\\_s3\\_mccrimmon.pdf](http://www.doj.gov.za/alraesa/conferences/papers/ent_s3_mccrimmon.pdf)

Leymann, H., Lindell, J. (1990). Social Support After Armed Robbery in the Workplace. In Emilio C. Viano, *The Victimology Handbook: Research findings, treatment, and public policy*, p 285-304.

Lord, J. H. (1990). *No time for goodbyes: Coping with sorrow, anger, and injustice after a tragic death.* Ventura, CA: Pathfinder.

Maguire, M. (1987). Victims' Needs and Victim Services: Implications from Research. *Victimology*, 10, 539-559.

McCormack, Robert J. (1991). Compensating Victims of Violent Crime. *Justice Quarterly*, 8, 329-346.

McCormack, Robert J. (1994). United States Crime Victim Assistance: History, Organization and Evaluation. *International Journal of Comparative and Applied Criminal Justice*, 18, 209-220.

Messmer, H., and Hans-Uwe Otto. (1992). *Restorative Justice on Trial: Pitfalls and Potentials of Victim-Offender Mediation - International Research Perspectives*. Dordrecht, NETH: Kluwer.

Miers, David R. (1978). *Responses to Victimization: A Comparative Study of Compensation for Criminal Violence in Great Britain and Ontario*. Abingdon, Oxon: Professional Books, Limited, p 51.

Miers, David R. (1983). Compensation and Conception of Victims of Crime. *Victimology*, 8 (1-2), 204-212.

Ministero dell'Interno (Ministry of the Interior), Direzione Centrale Diritti Civili (Central Direction Civil Rights), Cittadinanza e Minoranze (Citizenship and Minorities), Vittime Terrorismo (Victims of Terrorism), Rome, Italy. <http://www.interno.it/>

National Association of Crime Victim Compensation Board (NACVCB). <http://www.nacvcb.org/>

National Insurance Institute of Israel (Israel's NII Head Office), Department for Victims of Hostilities, Jerusalem, Israel. <http://www.btl.gov.il/NR/exeres/2130471C-E92B-4194-AC9E-FF8FDDB955BD.htm>

National Network to End Domestic Violence. (1997). *Survey of State Laws and Constitutional Provisions Regarding Crime Victims' Rights*. Washington, DC: Author.

National Organization for Victim Assistance (NOVA). <http://www.try-nova.org/> (accessed on August 19, 2004).

National Victim Center. (1996). *1996 Victims' Rights Sourcebook: A Compilation and Comparison of Victim Rights Laws*. Arlington, VA: National Victim Center.

Office for Victims of Crime Resources Center, National Criminal Justice Reference Services (NCJRS). <http://ovc.ncjrs.org/askovc/>

Parent, D. G., Auerbach, B, and Carlson, K. E. (1992). *Compensating Crime Victims: A Summary of Policies and Practices*. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Justice.

Perry, L., Lajeunesse, T., and Woods, A. (1987). *Mediation Services: An Evaluation*. Manitoba, Canada: Research, Planning and Evaluation, Office of the Attorney General.

Polito, K. E. (1990). The Rights of Crime Victims in the Criminal Justice System: Is Justice Blind to the Victim? *New England Journal on Criminal and Civil Confinement*, 16, 241-270.

President's Task Force on Victims of Crime. (1982). *Final Report*. Washington, DC: U. S. Government Printing Office.

*Public Safety: National Office for Victims* at  
<http://www.publicsafety.gc.ca/prg/cor/nov/nov-bnv-en.asp>

Ramker, G F., and Meagher, M. S. (1982). Crime Victim Compensation: A survey of State Programs. *Federal Probation*, 46(1), 68-76.

Resick, Patricia A., and Nishith, P. (1997). Sexual Assault. In R. C. Davis, A. J., Lurigio, and W. G., Skogan, *Victims of Crime 2<sup>nd</sup> ed.* Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage, p 27-52.

Rifai, M. Y. (1982). Methods of Measuring the Impact of Criminal Victimization Through Victimization Surveys. *The Victim in International Perspective*, p 189-202. New York: de Gruyter.

Robert Elias (1986). *The Politics of Victimization: Victims, Victimology and Human Rights*. New York: Oxford University Press.

Roberts, A. R. (1996). *Helping Battered Women: New perspectives and remedies*. New York: Oxford University Press.

Service Publique Federal Justice, Federal Ovweheidsdienst Justice, Brussels, Belgium.  
<http://just.fgov.be/>

Shapland, J. (1986). Victim Assistance and the Criminal Justice System: The Victim's Perspective. In Ezzat A. Fattah, *From Crime Policy to Victim Policy: Reorienting the Justice System*, p 218-233. New York: St. Martin's.

Sims, Barbara, Berwood Yost, and Christina Abbott (Dec 2006). The Pacific Island Community in New Zealand: Domestic Violence and Access to. *Justice Criminal Justice Policy Review*, vol. 17, 387- 406.

Skogan, W. G. and M. M. Maxfield (1981). *Coping with Crime*. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.

Slachtofferhulp Nederland (The Netherlands Victim Support), Utrecht, The Netherlands.  
<http://www.slachtofferhulp.nl/>

Stark, James, and Herman Goldstein (1985). *The Rights of Crime Victims*. Chicago, IL: Southern Illinois University Press

Stekette, G. and E. B. Foa (1987). Rape Victims: Post-Traumatic Stress Responses and Their Treatment: A Review of the Literature. *Journal of Anxiety Disorders*, 1, 69-8.

Swiss Federal Bureau of Justice, Division of Legislative Projects and Methods, Office of Crime Victim Assistance, Bern, Switzerland. <http://www.bj.admin.ch/bj/en/>  
Symposium: Perspectives on proposals for a constitutional amendment providing victim participation in the criminal justice system. (1987). *Wayne Law Review*, 34, 1-220.

The Compensation Agency, Belfast, Northern Ireland.  
<http://www.compensationni.gov.uk/>

The Crime Victim Assistance Program, British Columbia.  
[http://www.pssg.gov.bc.ca/victim\\_services](http://www.pssg.gov.bc.ca/victim_services)

The National Center for Victims of Crime. *Helping Crime Victims Rebuild Their Lives*.  
<http://www.ncvc.org/> (accessed on August 19, 2004).

The New Zealand Council of Victim Support Groups, New Zealand.  
<http://www.victimsupport.org.nz/contactus.asp>

The Victims of Crime Bureau. <http://www.lawlink.nsw.gov.au/voc>

*The White Ring Germany* (Weisser Ring). <http://www.weisser-ring.at/>

Tobolowsky, Peggy M. (2000). *Understanding Victimology: Selected Readings*. Anderson Publishing Co. Cincinnati, OH.

Tobolowsky, Peggy M. (1997). "Constitutionality" crime victim rights. *Criminal Law Bulletin*, 33, 395-423.

Tobolowsky, Peggy M. (1999). Victim Participation in the Criminal Justice Process: Fifteen years after the President's Task Force on Victims of Crime. *New England Journal on Criminal and Civil Confinement*, 25, 21-105.

Tomz, J. E., and McGillis, D. (1997). *Serving Crime Victims and Witnesses 2<sup>nd</sup> ed.* Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Justice.

Tontodonato, P., and Erez, E. (1994). Crime, Punishment, and Victim Distress. *International Review of Victimology*, 3, 33-55.

U.S. Department of Justice. Office for Victims of Crime. (1997). *Victims of Crime Act of 1984 as amended: A Report to the President and the Congress*. Washington, DC. Author.



U.S. Department of Justice. Office for Victims of Crime. *New Directions from the Field: Victims' Rights and Services for the 21<sup>st</sup> century*. Washington, DC: Author. 1998.

U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Office for Victims of Crime (OVC). (accessed on August 19, 2004). *The Efficacy of Victim Services Programs: Alleviating the Psychological Suffering of Crime Victims?*  
<http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ovc/welcome.htm>

U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Office for Victims of Crime (OVC). (September, 2005). *Directory of International Crime Victim Compensation Programs*.

Umbreit, Mark S. (1990). The Meaning of Fairness to Burglary Victims. In B. Galaway, and J. Hudson, *Criminal Justice, restitution, and reconciliation*, p 47-57. Monsey, NY: Criminal Justice Press.

U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Office for Victims of Crime (OVC). <http://www.ovc.gov/>

U.S. Department of State, Bureau of Consular Affairs, Overseas Citizens Services (OCS). [http://travel.state.gov/travel/travel\\_1744.html](http://travel.state.gov/travel/travel_1744.html)

Umbreit, Mark S. (1994). *Victim Meets Offender: The Impact of Restorative Justice and Mediation*. Monsey, NY: Willow Tree Press, Inc.

Viano, Emilio. (1990). *The Victimology Handbook: Research findings, treatment, and public policy*. New York: Garland.

Viano, Emilio C. (1989). Victimology Today: Major issues in research and public policy. *Crime and its Victims: International research and public policy issues*, p 3-14.

Victim Assistance Online, found at <http://www.vaonline.org/vsu.html>

Victims of Crime Assistance Tribunal, Victoria, Australia.  
<http://www.magistratescourt.vic.gov.au/>

Victim Support UK at <http://www.victimsupport.org/>

Victim Support Scotland. <http://www.victimsupportsco.demon.co.uk/main/>

Waller, I. (1982). *Crime Victims: Needs, Services, and Reforms-Orphans of Social Policy*. Paper presented at the Fourth International Symposium on Victimology, Tokyo.

Walker, N., and Hough, M. (1988). *Public Attitudes to Sentencing: Surveys From Five Countries*. Aldershot, UK: Gower.

Winkel, F. W., and Vrij, A. (1988). Facilitating problem- and emotion-focused coping in victims of burglary: Evaluating a police crisis intervention program. *Journal of Quantitative Criminology*, 4, 275-288.

Winkel, F. W. (1991). Police, Victims, and Crime Prevention. *British Journal of Criminology*, 31, 250-265.

Wolf, R. S., and Pillemer, K. A. (1989). *Helping Elderly Victims: The reality of elder abuse*. New York: Columbia University Press.

Wurtzburg, Susan J. (Sep 2003). *Criminal Justice Policy Review*, vol. 14, 423 - 446.

### **International Legal Instruments**

#### **United Nations:**

*Declaration of Basic Principles of Justice for Victims of Crime and Abuse of Power*. General Assembly Resolution 40/34 of 29 November 1985.

web link: <http://www.un.org/documents/ga/res/40/a40r034.htm>

*Basic Principles on the Use of Restorative Justice Programmes in Criminal Matters*. ECOSOC Resolution 2000/14, 2000, and ECOSOC (The Economic and Social Council) Resolution 2002/12, 2002.

web link:

<http://www.unicef.org/lac/spbarbados/Legal/global/CP/Basic%20principles%20restorative%20justice%20criminal%20matters.doc>.

*Convention against Transnational Organized Crime*. Articles 1, 14, 24, and 25, 2000.

web link: <http://www.unodc.org/unodc/en/treaties/CTOC/index.html>

*Protocol to Prevent, Suppress, and Punish Trafficking in Persons, Especially Women and Children, supplementing the UN Convention against Transnational Organized Crime*, 2000. web link:

[http://www.uncjin.org/Documents/Conventions/dcatoc/final\\_documents\\_2/convention\\_%20traff\\_eng.pdf](http://www.uncjin.org/Documents/Conventions/dcatoc/final_documents_2/convention_%20traff_eng.pdf)

*Guidelines on Justice for Child Violence and Witnesses of Crime*. ECOSOC (The Economic and Social Council) Resolution 2005/20, 2005.

web link: <http://www.un.org/docs/ecosoc/documents.asp?file=557>

*Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Rights to a Remedy and Reparation for Victims of Gross Violation of International Human Rights Law and Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law*. General Assembly Resolution 60/147, 2005.

web link: <http://www2.ohchr.org/english/law/remedy.htm>

#### **International Criminal Court:**

*Statute of Rome to Establish the International Criminal Court*. Articles 68, 75, 79, and 93, 1998. web link:

[http://www.icc-cpi.int/library/about/officialjournal/Rome\\_Statute\\_120704-EN.pdf](http://www.icc-cpi.int/library/about/officialjournal/Rome_Statute_120704-EN.pdf)

*Rules of Procedure and Evidence: Section III, Victims and Witnesses*, 2002. web link:  
[http://www.icc-cpi.int/library/about/officialjournal/Rules\\_of\\_procedure\\_and\\_Evidence\\_English.pdf](http://www.icc-cpi.int/library/about/officialjournal/Rules_of_procedure_and_Evidence_English.pdf)

### **Regional Instruments**

Council of Europe:

*European Convention on the Compensation of Victims of Violent Crimes*, Strasbourg, 24. XI. 1983 (CETS 116).

web link: <http://conventions.coe.int/Treaty/en/Treaties/Word/116.doc>

*Recommendation (1985) II on the Position of the Victim in the Framework of Criminal Law and Procedure*, adopted on June 28, 1985.

web link: <http://www.legislationline.org/legislation.php?tid=99&lid=4845>

*Recommendation (1999) 19 concerning Mediation in Penal Matters*, adopted on September 15, 1999.

web link:

<http://www.legislationline.org/legislation.php?tid=155&lid=5008&less=false>

*Recommendation (2006) 8 on Assistance to Crime Victims*, adopted on June 14, 2006.

web link:

<https://wcd.coe.int/ViewDoc.jsp?id=1011109&Site=CM&BackColorInternet=9999CC&BackColorIntranet=FFBB55&BackColorLogged=FFAC75>

*Framework Decision on the Standing of Victims in Criminal Proceedings*, (2001/220/JHA), March 15, 2001.

web link:

<http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=OJ:L:2001:082:0001:0004:EN:PDF>

*Directive 2004/80/EC relating to Compensation to Crime Victims*, April 29, 2004.

web link:

<http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=OJ:L:2004:261:0015:0015:EN:PDF>

### **NGO Instruments**

Statements issued by the European Forum for Victim Services:

web link: <http://www.euvictimservices.org/>

*Statement of Victims' Rights in the Process of Criminal Justice, 1996.*

*The Social Rights of Victims of Crime, 1997.*

*Statement of Victims' Rights to Standards of Service, 1998.*

*Statement on the Position of the Victim within the Process of Mediation, 2004.*